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I. Overview 
 
 The Federal Trade Commission (Commission), has accepted, subject to final approval, an 
agreement containing a proposed consent order with the Cooperativa de Médicos Oftalmólogos 
de Puerto Rico (Respondent or OftaCoop). The agreement settles charges that OftaCoop violated 
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45, by orchestrating a 
concerted refusal to deal by ophthalmologists in Puerto Rico to preclude a third-party payor and 
its network administrator from implementing a cost-savings program to manage ophthalmology 
services and reduce reimbursement rates. 
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MCS’s offer and cancelled, or threatened to cancel, their existing contracts with MCS. The 
contract cancellations jeopardized MCS’s ability to meet network adequacy requirements for its 
Medicare Advantage enrollees. It also threatened to imperil patient care: MCS received hundreds 
of phone calls from its enrollees complaining that ophthalmologists were not offering 
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 Paragraphs IV, V, and VI impose various obligations on OftaCoop to report or provide 
access to information to the Commission to facilitate monitoring of compliance with the consent 
order. 
 
 Finally, paragraph VII provides that the consent order will expire in 20 years. 
 
B. Impact of new Puerto Rico law on the proposed consent order and inclusion of a 
proviso 
 

During the investigation, Puerto Rico passed a new law (Act 228 of December 15, 2015) 
permitting healthcare cooperatives such as OftaCoop to jointly negotiate contracts with payors. 
Under this new law, healthcare cooperatives must file their payor agreements with the Puerto 
Rico Public Corporation for the Supervision and Insurance of Cooperatives (COSSEC). A 
committee whose members are not competitors in the market will oversee the negotiations, and 
must approve or disapprove each agreement.  

 
Puerto Rico has neither issued any regulations nor do we have any record to evaluate how 

Puerto Rico will supervise negotiations. Therefore, the Commission is unable to assess to 
whether Act 228 complies with state action requirements.1 Although it is too early to assess 
Puerto Rico’s implementation of the new law, the Commission believes the circumstances here 
make it appropriate to defer to Puerto Rico’s expressed intention to actively supervise joint 
negotiations between healthcare cooperatives and payors. Puerto Rico officials have only been 
recently granted that authority, and it is appropriate to allow them an opportunity to utilize that 
authority. As a result, the proposed consent order does not bar collective price negotiations. This 
is consistent with the consent order in another matter involving healthcare providers where state 
officials had authority to actively supervise private conduct but had not exercised it.2 

 
In light of Act 228, the order also includes a proviso designed to clarify the scope of the 

prohibitions in Paragraph II. First, it provides that the provisions of Paragraph II do not prohibit 
OftaCoop, in exercising its business judgment, from rejecting a contract on behalf of its 
members, so long as there is no agreement between OftaCoop and any of its members that the 
member will refuse to deal individually (or will deal only through OftaCoop). Second, the 
proposed consent order does not prevent OftaCoop from exchanging information when necessary 
to conduct joint payor contract negotiations on behalf of its members. Such information would 
not, however, ordinarily include whether an individual member is participating in a particular 
contract or the terms on which it is negotiating with a payor independently of OftaCoop. 

                                                 
1 The s

https://www.ftc.gov/news-events/press-releases/2010/06/minnesota-health-care-provider-group-settles-ftc-price-fixing
https://www.ftc.gov/news-events/press-releases/2010/06/minnesota-health-care-provider-group-settles-ftc-price-fixing

